
FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2017     COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M.                       FIRCREST CITY HALL, 115 RAMSDELL STREET 

1. CALL TO ORDER BY PRESIDING OFFICER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. PRESIDING OFFICER'S REPORT
5. CITIZEN COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

(Please sign the Public Attendance Roster/Public Hearing Sign-Up Sheet if you wish to speak during the meeting.)

6. COMMITTEE, COMMISSION & LIAISON REPORTS
A. Water, Sewer, Storm
B. Street, Facilities, Equipment
C. Public Safety, Court
D. Pierce County Regional Council

7. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Approval of vouchers/payroll checks 
B. Approval of minutes: October 2, 2017 Special Meeting 

October 5, 2017 Special Meeting  

C. Rescheduling a public hearing from October 24, 2017 to November 14, 2017 to receive
comments on amendments to Fircrest Comprehensive Plan and Pre-annexation
Designations.

8. PUBLIC HEARING 7:15 P.M.
A. Preliminary 2018 Budget Expenditures
B. Amendments to FMC Sections 22.58, including short-term rental establishments, home

occupations, outdoor storage of vehicles and Chapter 22.98 Definitions

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
10. NEW BUSINESS

A. Presentation: Pierce Transit Update: Board Commissioner Nancy Henderson
B. Motion: Liquor License Renewal – Sammy’s Pizza
C. Motion: Liquor License Renewal – Rollin 253
D. Resolution: Interagency Agreement with WA Traffic Safety Commission
E. Resolution: Amending City Council Rules of Procedures – Consent Calendar
F. Motion: City Manager Employment Agreement

11. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS
12. DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS
13. COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION
15. ADJOURNMENT

COUNCIL MAY ADD AND TAKE ACTION ON OTHER ITEMS NOT LISTED ON AGENDA



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 1
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

15024 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4298 AWC Employee Benefit 607.23 Nov 2017

521 22 20 01 LEOFF I Medical Premium 001 000 521 General Fund 607.23 Nov 2017 Retired Medical

15068 10/19/2017 10/24/2017 7766 Bartanen, Michael 268.61 04-01280.1 - 968 ALTADENA DR

343 10 00 00 Storm Drain Fees & Charge 415 000 340 Storm Drain -55.08
343 40 00 00 Sale Of Water 425 000 340 Water Fund (de -64.13
343 50 00 00 Sewer Revenues 430 000 340 Sewer Fund (de -149.40

15067 10/19/2017 10/24/2017 3173 Berry, George 10.43 07-02360.1 - 1440 ALAMEDA AVE

343 40 00 00 Sale Of Water 425 000 340 Water Fund (de 7.44
343 50 00 00 Sewer Revenues 430 000 340 Sewer Fund (de -17.87

15065 10/19/2017 10/24/2017 7672 Brynestad, Barton 15.63 01-01670.1 - 348 SUMMIT AVE

343 10 00 00 Storm Drain Fees & Charge 415 000 340 Storm Drain -5.11
343 40 00 00 Sale Of Water 425 000 340 Water Fund (de -5.72
343 50 00 00 Sewer Revenues 430 000 340 Sewer Fund (de -4.80

14997 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 284 Bucholz, Kathleen M 29.50 1/2 Library 2017

572 21 49 00 Library Services 001 000 572 General Fund 29.50 1/2 Library 2017 / Kathleen Bucholz

15010 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 362 Campbell, Erin 24.28 DMCMA 2017 Fall Training / Mileage

512 50 43 00 Travel - Court 001 000 512 General Fund 24.28 DMCMA 2017 Fall Training / Mileage - Erin 
Campbell (10/04/17) SeaTac, WA

15050 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4290 Cascade Recreation Inc 237.38 Dogipot Waste Bags

576 80 31 02 Oper Supplies - Parks 001 000 576 General Fund 237.38 Dogipot Waste Bags (1 Case / 30 Rolls)

15055 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3994 CenturyLink 61.36 Public Works Fax

531 50 42 00 Communication - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 15.34 Public Work Fax - Storm
534 10 42 00 Communication - Water 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 15.34 Public Work Fax - Water
535 10 42 01 Communication - Sewer 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 15.34 Public Work Fax - Sewer
542 30 42 00 Communication - Street 101 000 542 City Street Fund 15.34 Public Work Fax - Street

15056 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3994 CenturyLink 64.94 Parks Primary 911

576 80 42 00 Communication - Parks 001 000 576 General Fund 64.94 Parks Primary 911

15057 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3994 CenturyLink 126.78 Direct Inward Dial - City Hall

518 10 42 00 Communication - Non Dept 001 000 518 General Fund 126.78 Direct Inward Dial - City Hall

15058 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3994 CenturyLink 126.35 Police BA Machine / Modem



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 2
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

521 22 42 00 Communication - Police 001 000 521 General Fund 126.35 Police BA Machine / Modem

14998 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 5774 Cheng, Kenneth 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017

572 21 49 00 Library Services 001 000 572 General Fund 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017 / Shelae Cheng

14991 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4324 City Treasurer-City of Tacoma 51,920.41 Nov 2017 Fire / EMS

522 20 50 00 Tacoma Contract - Fire 001 000 522 General Fund 25,065.66 Nov 2017 Fire
522 20 51 00 Tacoma Contract - EMS 001 000 522 General Fund 26,854.75 Nov 2017 EMS

15027 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4318 City of Fircrest Treasurer 10,279.24 Oct 2017 Interfund

518 30 47 00 Public Utility Services - Cit 001 000 518 General Fund 740.98
531 50 47 02 Public Utility Services/Bldg 415 000 531 Storm Drain 276.64
531 50 47 03 Public Utility Services/Met 415 000 531 Storm Drain 9.32
534 10 47 00 Utility Services/Building - W 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 276.64
534 80 47 01 Utility Services/Pumping 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 434.91
534 80 47 03 Public Utility Services/Met 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 4.70
535 10 47 00 Utility Services/Building - S 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 276.64
535 80 47 04 Public Utility Services/Met 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 4.70
542 30 47 02 Electricity & Gas/Bldg - Str 101 000 542 City Street Fund 2.02
542 30 47 02 Electricity & Gas/Bldg - Str 101 000 542 City Street Fund 276.65
542 80 47 00 Public Utility Services-St B 101 000 542 City Street Fund 267.34
548 65 47 00 Utilities ShopGarage 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 29.20
576 20 47 00 Public Utility Services - Po 001 000 576 General Fund 1,802.11
576 80 47 00 Public Utility Services - Par 001 000 576 General Fund 5,877.39

15042 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4322 City of Tacoma - Utilities 8,732.07 Power / Various Locations

518 30 47 00 Public Utility Services - Cit 001 000 518 General Fund 523.95
531 50 47 02 Public Utility Services/Bldg 415 000 531 Storm Drain 94.85
534 10 47 00 Utility Services/Building - W 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 94.85
534 80 47 01 Utility Services/Pumping 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 3,278.49
535 10 47 00 Utility Services/Building - S 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 94.86
535 80 47 01 Utility Services/Pumping 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 911.73
542 30 47 02 Electricity & Gas/Bldg - Str 101 000 542 City Street Fund 94.85
542 30 47 03 Electricity/Traffic Lights 101 000 542 City Street Fund 40.65
542 63 47 00 Electricity/Street Lights 101 000 542 City Street Fund 2,063.32
548 65 47 00 Utilities ShopGarage 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 40.29
576 80 47 00 Public Utility Services - Par 001 000 576 General Fund 1,494.23

14990 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3565 Comfort Davies & Smith 6,560.00 Sept 2017

515 30 41 01 City Attorney 001 000 515 General Fund 1,525.20 Sept 2017 - Administration
515 30 41 03 City Prosecutor 001 000 515 General Fund 5,034.80 Sept 2017 - Court, Police

15011 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3572 Consolidated Electrical Distributors 31.27 Compact Fluorescent Lamps, Light Tubes



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 3
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

518 30 31 04 Oper Sup/CH 001 000 518 General Fund 31.27 Compact Fluorescent Lamps (4), Light Tubes (4) - 
City Hall

15012 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3572 Consolidated Electrical Distributors 88.54 Light Bulbs

518 30 31 04 Oper Sup/CH 001 000 518 General Fund 88.54 100 Watt Light Bulbs (6), 400 Watt Light Bulbs (2) -
City Hall

15013 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3572 Consolidated Electrical Distributors 73.22 Photocells (105-305 Volt Photocontrols)

542 63 31 00 Oper Supplies - Street Ligh 101 000 542 City Street Fund 73.22 Photocells (7) - Street Lights

15014 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7802 Core & Main LP 1,507.17 Neptune Direct Read Meters (Quantity: 20)

534 50 31 01 Oper Supplies - Water Main 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 1,507.17 Neptune Direct Read Meters (Quantity: 20)

15066 10/19/2017 10/24/2017 2323 Crawford, Roderick 74.10 05-00380.1 - 1046 BUENA VISTA AVE

343 10 00 00 Storm Drain Fees & Charge 415 000 340 Storm Drain -15.19
343 40 00 00 Sale Of Water 425 000 340 Water Fund (de -17.70
343 50 00 00 Sewer Revenues 430 000 340 Sewer Fund (de -41.21

14999 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 15 Crippen, Kathy 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017

572 21 49 00 Library Services 001 000 572 General Fund 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017 / Kathy Crippen

15015 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3589 Databar Inc 697.87 Town Topics Newsletter (Oct 2017)

518 10 49 01 Town Topics 001 000 518 General Fund 697.87 Town Topics Newsletter (Oct 2017)

15059 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4310 Dept Of Revenue-EXCISE TAX 411.10 Sept 2017 Excise Tax

521 22 49 05 Reimbursable Programs 001 000 521 General Fund 17.41
531 50 53 00 Excise Tax - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 17.60
534 10 53 00 Excise Tax - Water 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 34.61
535 10 53 00 Excise Tax - Sewer 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 70.73
571 10 31 03 Youth Supplies 001 000 571 General Fund 22.78
576 20 53 00 Excise Tax - Pool Revenue 001 000 576 General Fund 247.97

14996 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3625 Espress O Yourself 81.60 Build-Your-Own-Meal Deli Tray (Includes Chips 
& Beverages)

511 60 49 04 Meals 001 000 511 General Fund 81.60 Sandwich Tray (10/02/17) Budget Meeting

15032 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3668 Gray Lumber Company Inc 202.00 4x4 Cedar Posts - Sign Repair

542 30 31 02 Oper Supplies - Street Reg 101 000 542 City Street Fund 202.00 4x4 Cedar Posts (4 Posts / 10 Foot) - Sign Repairs

15051 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 5141 Great Floors Commercial 4,019.04 Install New Flooring - Public Safety Building 
Kitchen



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 4
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

518 30 48 04 Rep & Maint - PSB 001 000 518 General Fund 4,019.04 Install New Flooring - Public Safety Building 
Kitchen (State Contract No. 03916)

15004 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 6774 Greenleaf Landscaping 1 Inc 3,813.53 Additional Landscaping Services (Sept 2017)

542 30 48 01 Rep & Maint - Street Maint 101 000 542 City Street Fund 131.88 Repair Three Pipes (Damaged During Plant Removal
By City) - Regents Blvd/Alameda (Big Island)

542 30 48 01 Rep & Maint - Street Maint 101 000 542 City Street Fund 109.90 Install 7-Gallon Mungo Pine Trees (Quantity: 2) - 
Flower Bed Area @South Orchard/Summit "Limited 
Site Distance Issue Replacements"

595 32 63 01 Street Improvements 101 000 542 City Street Fund 1,868.30 Remove Existing Plants, Create Flower Bed With 
Additional Fine Compost, New Instant Turf, Topsoil,
Fertilizer - Regents Blvd/Alameda (Big Island) 
"Street Right-Of-Way Improvements"

595 32 63 01 Street Improvements 101 000 542 City Street Fund 1,703.45 Rejuvenate Landscape: Irrigation Valves, New 
Instant Turf, Topsoil, Fertilizer, Stump Removal, 
Clean-Up - Alameda/Princeton "Street Right-Of-Way
Improvements"

15016 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3692 Home Depot Credit Services 16.68 Chrome Nylon Lock Nuts, Caster Rubber Wheels

518 30 31 04 Oper Sup/CH 001 000 518 General Fund 16.68 Chrome Nylon Lock Nuts, Caster Rubber Wheels - 
City Hall Breakroom Chair

15033 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3692 Home Depot Credit Services 16.42 Brass Adapters, Water Pressure Test Gauge - 
Drake Street Liftstation

535 50 31 01 Oper Supplies - Sewer Main 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 16.42 Brass Adapters, Water Pressure Test Gauge - Drake 
Street Liftstation

15043 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3692 Home Depot Credit Services 74.49 Ceramic Magnet Hooks, Blue Reversible Magnet 
Hooks, Caster Rubber Wheels

518 30 31 02 Oper Sup/PSB Bldg 001 000 518 General Fund 21.91 Ceramic Magnet Hooks, Blue Reversible Magnet 
Hooks - Police Key Hangers

518 30 31 04 Oper Sup/CH 001 000 518 General Fund 52.58 Caster Rubber Wheels - City Hall Breakroom Chairs

15000 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 6891 Hubbell, Casey 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017

572 21 49 00 Library Services 001 000 572 General Fund 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017 / Casey Hubbell

14994 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4131 Humane Society - Tacoma 661.00 Oct 2017 Boarding Fee

554 30 41 00 Animal Control 001 000 554 General Fund 661.00 Oct 2017 Boarding Fee

14993 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7470 Inland Answering Service Inc 220.00 Inland Answering Service / Dec 2017

531 50 42 00 Communication - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 55.00 Inland Answering Service - Storm (Dec 2017)
534 10 42 00 Communication - Water 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 55.00 Inland Answering Service - Water (Dec 2017)



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 5
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

535 10 42 01 Communication - Sewer 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 55.00 Inland Answering Service - Sewer (Dec 2017)
542 30 42 00 Communication - Street 101 000 542 City Street Fund 55.00 Inland Answering Service - Street (Dec 2017)

15061 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3709 J & K Associates 11,834.03 Western 8' Pro Plus Ultra Mount Snow Plow 
(Includes Wiring Harness & Additional Hitch)

594 48 64 12 Street - ERR Capital 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 1,404.52 #31269-1 Additional Hitch - Street (For Use With 
2017 F350 Dump Truck) #63582D

594 48 64 12 Street - ERR Capital 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 458.28 Wiring Harness - Street (For Use With 2017 F350 
Dump Truck) #63582D

594 48 64 12 Street - ERR Capital 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 9,971.23 Western 8' Pro Plus Ultra Mount Snow Plow, Hitch 
& Wiring Harness - Street (For Use With 2008 Ford 
F550 Dump Truck/Snow Plow) #59083D

15044 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3751 KPG, PS 3,841.16 P#47 Traffic Signal Safety (Through 09/25/17)

595 10 63 08 Traffic Signal Grant P.E. 101 000 542 City Street Fund 3,841.16 P#47 Traffic Signal Safety Improvements 
(Professional Services 08/26/17 - 09/25/17)

15048 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 151 Knecht, Joann 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017

572 21 49 00 Library Services 001 000 572 General Fund 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017 / Joann Knecht

15003 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3776 Lemay Mobile Shredding 32.41 Sept 2017 Shredding - Court

512 50 49 00 Miscellaneous - Court 001 000 512 General Fund 32.41 Sept 2017 Shredding (65 Galllon Cart) - Court

15031 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3791 Lowe's Company-#338954 25.76 Chair Leg Pads, Table Leg Pads

518 30 31 02 Oper Sup/PSB Bldg 001 000 518 General Fund 25.76 Chair Leg Pads, Table Leg Pads - Public Safety 
Building Kitchen Chair Repair Parts

15034 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3791 Lowe's Company-#338954 36.56 3-Pack Folding Hex, 25-Ft Tape Measure

534 80 35 00 Small Tools & Equip - Wat 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 36.56 3-Pack Folding Hex, 25-Ft Tape Measure - Water 
Usage

14995 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 5766 Multicare Cntr of Occupational Medicine 80.00 Dept Of Transportation Physical - Gary Mims

518 30 49 00 Miscellaneous - Fac/Equip 001 000 518 General Fund 80.00 DOT Physical - Gary Mims (09/27/17)

15049 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 1982 Munt, Stephen 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017

572 21 49 00 Library Services 001 000 572 General Fund 59.00 1 Yr Library 2017 / Stephen & Christina Munt

15002 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7800 Nguyen, My Khanh 155.80 Vietnamese Interpreter (2 Hrs + Mileage)

512 50 41 03 Prof Srvs - Interpreter 001 000 512 General Fund 155.80 Vietnamese Interpreter (Case No. 7Z1076856) 
10/11/17



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 6
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

14992 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7402 Northwest Assessment Services, PLLC 400.00 Pre-Employment Psychological Examination - 
John Roberts

518 11 41 00 Prof Svcs - Personnel 001 000 518 General Fund 400.00 Pre-Employment Psychological Examination - John 
Roberts (09/30/17)

15017 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3910 Office Depot 15.36 Deluxe Lanyards, Plastic Badge Holders

513 10 31 00 Office & Oper Supplies - A 001 000 513 General Fund 15.36 Deluxe Blue Nylon Lanyards (1 Box Of 24), Plastic 
Badge Holders (2 Packs Of 12 Each) - 
Administration

15025 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3957 PC Budget & Finance 592.56 Sept 2017 Printing Charges

518 10 34 02 Central Office Printing 001 000 518 General Fund 60.78 Business Cards (Jeff Davis, Utility Superintendent) - 
Central Office Printing

518 10 34 02 Central Office Printing 001 000 518 General Fund 273.49 Surplus Property Forms - Central Office Printing
521 22 31 00 Office & Oper Supplies - Po 001 000 521 General Fund 258.29 Authorization To Tow Forms - Police

15035 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3961 PCRCD, LLC dba LRI-HV 464.80 Street Sweepings

531 50 47 01 Dumping Fees - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 464.80 Street Sweepings (09/15/17 - 09/19/17) Net Weight 
16.93

14989 10/11/2017 10/24/2017 5265 Parry, Anthony 52.36 05-02620.0 - 1030 CLAREMONT CT

343 10 00 00 Storm Drain Fees & Charge 415 000 340 Storm Drain -26.32
343 40 00 00 Sale Of Water 425 000 340 Water Fund (de -5.99
343 50 00 00 Sewer Revenues 430 000 340 Sewer Fund (de -20.05

15060 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3955 Petrocard Systems Inc 533.41 Gas / Fuel

548 65 31 12 Street Gas 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 13.60 Diesel Fuel - Street
548 65 31 13 Storm Gas 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 288.83 Diesel Fuel - Storm
548 65 31 14 Wtr/Swr Gas 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 230.98 Diesel Fuel - Wtr / Swr

15001 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 3971 Pitney Bowes Inc Supplies 161.49 Postage Meter Red Ink Cartridge, Postage Tape 
Strips, E-Z Seal

518 10 42 01 Postage - Non-Dept 001 000 518 General Fund 161.49 Postage Meter Red Ink Cartridge (Quantity: 1), 
Postage Tape Strips (Quantity: 1 Box / 300 Per Box),
E-Z Seal (Quantity: 1 Box Of 4 / 64 Ounce Bottles)

15052 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7803 Precision Door Service 343.29 Repair Sweeper Stall Bay Door - Public Works

518 30 48 03 Rep & Maint - PW 001 000 518 General Fund 343.29 Repair Sweeper Stall Bay Door - Public Works 
(Inspected, Found Bad Roller On Right Side, 
Replaced One 2" Long Steel Roller, Lube/Tune Door
& Opener, Labor)



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 7
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

15040 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7614 Prothman 2,115.48 Municipal Consulting Services (Bill McDonald) 
09/23/17 - 10/06/17 (30.50 Hrs @$68/Hr) Includes 
2% State/City B&O Tax Charge

513 10 41 00 Prof Svcs - Admin 001 000 513 General Fund 2,115.48 Municipal Consulting Services (Bill McDonald) 
09/23/17 - 10/06/17 (30.50 Hrs @$68/Hr) Includes 
2% State/City B&O Tax Charge

15041 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7614 Prothman 6,166.66 City Manager Search

513 10 41 00 Prof Svcs - Admin 001 000 513 General Fund 6,166.66 City Manager Search - 3rd Of 3 Professional Fee 
Installments

15018 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4018 Rosen Supply Company Inc 66.64 Faucet Spray Kit (Spray Head)

518 30 31 02 Oper Sup/PSB Bldg 001 000 518 General Fund 66.64 Faucet Spray Kit (Spray Head) - Fire Department 
Kitchen

15053 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 5602 Six Robblees' Inc 621.29 #62855D (2017 Ford F150 Pick-Up) Tool Box

594 48 64 11 Parks/Rec - ERR Capital 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 621.29 #62855D (2017 Ford F150 Pick-Up) Over-The-Rail 
Truck Tool Box

15062 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 228 Smith, Michael B 782.50 WSAMA Fall Conference (10/11/17 - 10/13/17) 
Suncadia Lodge, Cle Elm, WA "Washington State
Association Of Municipal Attorneys"

515 30 43 00 Travel - Legal 001 000 515 General Fund 582.50 Conference / Lodging, Mileage, Meals - Mike Smith
515 30 49 01 Reg & Tuition - Legal 001 000 515 General Fund 200.00 Conference / Registration - Mike Smith

15019 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 7749 Sound Uniform Solutions Inc 77.06 Uniform Boots - Sergeant Villamor

521 22 49 01 Uniforms/Clothing/Laundry 001 000 521 General Fund 77.06 Force 8" Black Boot With Side Zip (Size 10D) - 
Sergeant Villamor

15020 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4084 Staples Business Advantage 83.51 HP Tri-Color Ink (1 Pack) - Building & Planning

524 20 31 00 Office & Oper Supplies-Bld 001 000 524 General Fund 41.75 Tri-Color Ink - Building (50% Split)
558 60 31 00 Office & Oper Supplies-Pla 001 000 558 General Fund 41.76 Tri-Color Ink - Planning (50% Split)

15021 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4084 Staples Business Advantage 62.23 Blue Locking Cash Box, CD Pocket Sleeves, Fine 
Point Markers, 2018 Yearly Labels

512 50 31 00 Office & Oper Supplies-Co 001 000 512 General Fund 62.23 Blue Locking Cash Box, CD Pocket Sleeves, Fine 
Point Markers, 2018 Yearly Labels - Court

15022 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4120 Tacoma Daily Index 34.37 Community Center & Swimming Pool Advisory 
Committee Survey Results



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 8
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

511 60 41 01 Advertising - Legislative 001 000 511 General Fund 34.37 Community Center & Swimming Pool Advisory 
Committee Survey Results

15036 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4122 Tacoma Electric Supply 127.17 Photocells (105-285 Volt)

542 63 31 00 Oper Supplies - Street Ligh 101 000 542 City Street Fund 127.17 Photocells (6) - Street Lights

15064 10/19/2017 10/24/2017 6520 Talley, Morgan 25.44 05-02635.7 - 1232 ALAMEDA AVE

343 40 00 00 Sale Of Water 425 000 340 Water Fund (de -7.64
343 50 00 00 Sewer Revenues 430 000 340 Sewer Fund (de -17.80

15006 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 46.66 Amazon.Com / APC Battery Back-Up UPS - 
Court/Council Chambers

512 50 35 00 Small Tools & Equip-Court 001 000 512 General Fund 46.66 Amazon.Com / APC Battery Back-Up 
Uninterruptible Power Supply & Surge Protector - 
Court/Council Chambers

15007 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 33.02 Costco / Sandwich Roller Platter

511 60 49 04 Meals 001 000 511 General Fund 33.02 Costco / Sandwich Roller Platter (10/09/17) Budget 
Meeting

15008 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 35.12 Starbucks Store / Coffee Traveler

513 10 49 00 Miscellaneous - Admin 001 000 513 General Fund 35.12 Starbucks Store / Coffee Traveler (10/04/17 & 
10/05/17) City Manager Meet & Greet Reception & 
Interviews

15009 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 167.46 Costco / Sandwich Platters, BBQ Fun Platter, 
Strawberries, Grapes, Bottled Water, Cookie 
Platters, Apple Strudel, Dixie Plates

513 10 49 00 Miscellaneous - Admin 001 000 513 General Fund 167.46 Costco / Sandwich Platters, BBQ Fun Platter, 
Strawberries, Grapes, Bottled Water, Cookie Platters,
Apple Strudel, Dixie Plates (10/04/17 & 10/05/17) 
City Manager Meet & Greet Reception & Interviews

15028 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 250.00 Glock Professional Inc / Training Class No. 
105030 "Armorer's Course" - Chris Roberts

521 22 49 02 Reg & Tuition - Police 001 000 521 General Fund 250.00 Glock Professional Inc / Training Course No. 105030
"Armorer's Course" - Chris Roberts (11/14/17)

15046 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 446.19 Lyntrux Plus LLC / #62855D (2017 Ford F150 
Pick-Up) Spray-On Bedliner - Parks



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 9
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

594 48 64 11 Parks/Rec - ERR Capital 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 446.19 Lyntrux Plus LLC / #62855D (2017 Ford F150 
Pick-Up) Full Metal Jacket Spray-On Bedliner 
"Allow 48 Hours Before Heavy Use" - Parks

15047 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 34.10 Sammy's Pizza / Pizza

511 60 49 04 Meals 001 000 511 General Fund 34.10 Sammy's Pizza / Pizza (10/16/17) Budget Meeting

15054 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4139 Tapco Visa Card 4.00 Quality Inn / BIAS Deep Dives Conference - 
Parking

514 23 43 00 Travel - Finance 001 000 514 General Fund 2.00 Quality Inn / Parking (Michelle Thomas, Vicky 
Walston) Spokane, WA (10/09/17 & 10/10/17) - 
Finance

534 10 43 00 Travel - Water 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 1.00 Quality Inn / Parking (Michelle Thomas, Vicky 
Walston) Spokane, WA (10/09/17 & 10/10/17) - 
Water

535 10 43 00 Travel - Sewer 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 1.00 Quality Inn / Parking (Michelle Thomas, Vicky 
Walston) Spokane, WA (10/09/17 & 10/10/17) - 
Sewer

15063 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4125 The News Tribune-Subscrip 29.90 Newspaper Subscription (13 Weeks)

518 10 49 03 Dues,Member,Sub - NonDe 001 000 518 General Fund 29.90 Newspaper Subscription (13 Weeks) Premium 
Editions Not Included In Annual Renewal Price 
Causing Expiration Date To Be Adjusted 
Accordingly.  This Additional Payment Covers 
Delivery Thru End Of Year.

15026 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4188 Verizon Wireless LLC 276.19 Public Works Plan (9 Phones) & Global 
Positioning System Air Card (1)

531 50 42 00 Communication - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 59.05 PW Cell Phones (09/02/17 - 10/01/17) - Storm
531 50 42 00 Communication - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 10.00 GPS Air Card - Storm
534 10 42 00 Communication - Water 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 59.04 PW Cell Phones (09/02/17 - 10/01/17) - Water
534 10 42 00 Communication - Water 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 10.00 GPS Air Card - Water
535 10 42 01 Communication - Sewer 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 59.05 PW Cell Phones (09/02/17 - 10/01/17) - Sewer
535 10 42 01 Communication - Sewer 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 10.00 GPS Air Card - Sewer
542 30 42 00 Communication - Street 101 000 542 City Street Fund 59.04 PW Cell Phones (09/02/17 - 10/01/17) - Street
542 30 42 00 Communication - Street 101 000 542 City Street Fund 10.01 GPS Air Card - Street

15045 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4188 Verizon Wireless LLC 389.07 09/02/17 - 10/01/17 Air Cards (9) "Invoice 
Indicates Loaner Laptops But Equipment Is 
Owned By The City Per Information Systems 
Manager Dave Haupt"



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 10
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

521 22 35 00 Small Tools & Equip - Poli 001 000 521 General Fund 32.96 Equipment Purchase: Air Card For New Officer John
Roberts (Replaces Non-Working Air Card Which 
Was Returned For Refund) - Police

521 22 42 00 Communication - Police 001 000 521 General Fund 356.11 09/02/17 - 10/01/17 Air Cards (9) "Invoice Indicates 
Loaner Laptops But Equipment Is Owned By The 
City Per Information Systems Manager Dave Haupt"

15030 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 339 Villamor, John 7.00 #49844D (2009 Crown Victoria) Car Wash

548 65 48 08 O & M - Police 501 000 548 Equipment Ren 7.00 #49844D (2009 Crown Victoria) Brown Bear Car 
Wash (09/15/17) - John Villamor

15023 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4231 Water Mgmt Labs Inc 330.00 Radium, Fluoride

534 80 41 00 Water Testing 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 330.00 Radium, Fluoride

15037 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4246 Whistle Workwear 158.53 Timberland Helix Work Boots - Jim Marzano

531 50 20 01 Contract Benefits - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 39.63 Work Boots - Jim Marzano (Storm)
534 10 20 01 Contract Benefits - Wtr Adm 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 39.63 Work Boots - Jim Marzano (Water)
535 10 20 01 Contract Benefits - Swr Ad 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 39.64 Work Boots - Jim Marzano (Sewer)
542 30 20 01 Contract Benefits - Street R 101 000 542 City Street Fund 39.63 Work Boots - Jim Marzano (Street)

15038 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4246 Whistle Workwear 198.16 Buccaneer Work Boots, Brown Double Front 
Dungaree Work Pants - Tim Piercy

531 50 20 01 Contract Benefits - Storm 415 000 531 Storm Drain 49.54 Work Boots, Work Pants - Tim Piercy (Storm)
534 10 20 01 Contract Benefits - Wtr Adm 425 000 534 Water Fund (de 49.54 Work Boots, Work Pants - Tim Piercy (Water)
535 10 20 01 Contract Benefits - Swr Ad 430 000 535 Sewer Fund (de 49.54 Work Boots, Work Pants - Tim Piercy (Sewer)
542 30 20 01 Contract Benefits - Street R 101 000 542 City Street Fund 49.54 Work Boots, Work Pants - Tim Piercy (Street)

15039 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4246 Whistle Workwear 148.62 Buccaneer Work Boots - Andy Piercy

576 80 49 00 Miscellaneous - Parks 001 000 576 General Fund 148.62 Work Boots - Andy Piercy (Parks)

15005 10/24/2017 10/24/2017 4256 Winning Seasons 381.35 Dark Green Hooded Sweatshirts (16)

576 20 31 03 Oper Supplies - Pool 001 000 576 General Fund 381.35 Dark Green Hooded Sweatshirts (16) - Lifeguards 
"Reference Receipt No.16988 10/17/17 Cash 
Reimbursement & Trans. No.6825 General Ledger"

Report Total: 123,013.95
Fund

001 General Fund 89,101.60
101 City Street Fund 11,030.47
415 Storm Drain 1,193.47
425 Water Fund (department) 6,321.22



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
City Of Fircrest Time: 13:19:57 Date: 10/19/2017
MCAG #: 0583 As Of: 10/24/2017 Page: 11
Accts
Pay # Received Date Due Vendor Amount Memo

430 Sewer Fund (department) 1,855.78
501 Equipment Rental Fund 13,511.41

This report has been reviewed by:
                                                     _________________________________         ___________________
REMARKS:                                                    Signature  & Title                                               Date                               







CITY OF FIRCREST 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2017                                                           COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
6:00 P.M.                                               FIRCREST CITY HALL, 115 RAMSDELL STREET 
 
CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL  
Mayor Matthew Jolibois called the special meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and led the pledge of 
allegiance.  Councilmembers Blake Surina, Shannon Reynolds, Brett Wittner, Hunter T. George, 
Denny Waltier, and Jason Medley were present. 
 
At the request of George, Jolibois led a moment of silence for the victims of the Las Vegas 
shooting. 
 
AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
There were none. 
 
PRELIMINARY 2018 BUDGET – 1ST BUDGET WORK SESSION 
Interim City Manager McDonald presented the highlights of the General Fund and Equipment 
Rental and Replacement (ERR) Fund.  McDonald briefed the Council on the organizational 
chart, format of the budget presentation, and budget review schedule.  Finance Director Corcoran 
provided an overview of impacts to the General Fund, which included: 

• Changes in personnel, wages, and salaries 
• Proposed personnel 
• Capital projects 
• Transfers 

After providing the revenue projections for the General Fund, which are based on early revenue 
estimates, Corcoran briefed the Council on changes in General Fund operating revenues and 
operating budget expenditures by department.  The following goals were briefed to the Council 
by the following individuals: 

• Legislative: Interim City Manager McDonald 
• Administration: City Clerk Nappi 
• Personnel: City Clerk Nappi 
• Finance: Director Corcoran 
• Information Systems: Director Corcoran 
• Building and Planning: Administrator Stahlnecker 
• Culture and Recreation: Director Grover 
• Police: Chief Cheesman 
• Emergency Management: Chief Cheesman 
• Judicial Services: Administrator Perry 

McDonald and Corcoran covered the General Fund major variances by department as well as the 
Equipment Repair and Replacement (ERR) Fund goals and variances.  McDonald concluded the 
presentation with the upcoming budget schedule, indicating that the next budget presentation was 
scheduled for October 9, 2017 and would cover Enterprise Funds and Capital Project Funds.   
 
After some discussion, Council requested more information to be provided at the 3rd budget work 
session: condo development status, e-mail push notification/list serv, succession planning, Parks 



October 2, 2017                               Fircrest City Council Meeting Minutes – Special 2 
 

& Recreation rates, Stormdrain Utility excise tax, Franchise Fee Cable TV revenue, Police 
vehicles, Council handheld devices, and strategic partnerships. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Medley Moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:39 P.M., seconded by Reynolds. The Motion 
Carried Unanimously. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
  Matthew Jolibois 

Mayor 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 

                                                 Jessica Nappi 
City Clerk 

 



CITY OF FIRCREST 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2017                                                       COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
9:00 A.M.                                              FIRCREST CITY HALL, 115 RAMSDELL STREET 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  
Mayor Matthew Jolibois called the special meeting to order at 8:55 A.M. Councilmembers Blake 
Surina, Brett Wittner, and Hunter T. George were present. Councilmember Shannon Reynolds 
and Denny Waltier were absent and excused.  Jolibois indicated Councilmember Jason Medley 
would be delayed and was excused. 
 
AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
There were none. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 8:56 A.M., Jolibois reported that the Council convene into Executive Session to evaluate the 
qualifications of City Manager applicants for public employment pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(g), not to exceed the hour of 3:00 P.M. 
 
Councilmember Waltier arrived at 2:05 P.M. 
 
The Council reconvened into session at 3:02 P.M. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Wittner Moved to adjourn the meeting at 3:02 P.M., seconded by Medley. The Motion 
Carried Unanimously. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
  Matthew Jolibois 

Mayor 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 

                                                 Jessica Nappi 
City Clerk 

 









 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
1 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

CITY OF FIRCREST PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-06 

CASE NO. 17-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, RECOMMENDING 

ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER FMC 22.58 

SPECIFIC USE AND STRUCTURE REGULATIONS, INCLUDING 

SHORT-TERM RENTAL ESTABLISHMENTS, HOME 

OCCUPATIONS, OUTDOOR STORAGE OF VEHICLES, AND 

FMC 22.98 DEFINITIONS. 

 

WHEREAS, the City has identified code amendments based on concerns discussed at 

the April 17, 2017 City Council study session; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held study sessions on June 6, 2017 and July 

10, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City submitted a Notice of Intent to Adopt to the Washington State 

Department of Commerce on July 18, 2017, which was issued to state agencies for a 60-

day comment period as required pursuant to RCW 36A.70 RCW, and no adverse 

comments were received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City issued a Determination of Nonsignificance on July 20, 2017 with 

a 14-day comment period ending August 3, 2017, and no adverse comments were 

received; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on August 15, 2017 

to accept public testimony and comment on the proposed amendments; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission adopted the following findings in support of 

approval of the proposed amendments, in consideration of the criteria listed in Section 

22.78.004 FMC, prior to final action: 

(a) The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the 

comprehensive plan, in particular: 

Policy H1.1 Effectively implement zoning regulations, including design standards and 

guidelines, to help support the stability of established residential neighborhood. 

Policy LU5.6 The character of existing single-family residential neighborhoods should 

be preserved and enhanced. 

Policy LU5.9 To expand local economic opportunities for Fircrest's residents, home 

occupations that are compatible with the surrounding residential area shall be 

encouraged.  

(b) The proposed amendment will promote, rather than detract from, the public health, 

safety, morals and general welfare by addressing nuisance and environmental concerns 

related to outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, addressing potential impacts from 

business activity in residential neighborhoods and encouraging low impact 

development as it relates to parking surfaces.   



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
2 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of 

Fircrest hereby recommends to the City Council that it: 

 

1. Amend FMC 22.58.011 to read as follows: 

 

22.58.011 Bed and breakfastShort-term rental establishments.  

 

(a) Purpose and Intent. purpose of this section is to: 

(1) Provide property owners and residents with an opportunity to use their homes to 

engage in small-scale business activities. 

(2) Protect neighborhood character and stability. 

(3) Establish criteria and standards for the use of residential structures as short-term 

rentals. 

(b) Permit Requirements. A short-term rental establishment may be carried on upon 

the issuance of a business license pursuant to Chapter 5.04 FMC and the issuance of a 

short-term rental permit by the director. 

(c) Submittal Requirements. Application for a short-term rental permit shall be made 

upon forms provided by the director, accompanied by a filing fee in accordance with 

the planning services fee schedule established by council resolution. The application 

shall be signed by the owner of the property on which the short-term rental activity 

will occur. The application shall also be signed by the business operator if that person 

is different from the property owner. The director may require the submittal of a site 

plan of the premises, floor plans of the residence or accessory building in which the 

use or activity will take place, and other documentation deemed necessary to process 

the application. The plans shall clearly indicate the area where the use or activity will 

take place and any structural alterations intended to accommodate the use or activity. 

(d) Short-term Rental Types Defined. following definitions apply to the short-term 

rental types allowed through the provisions of this section: 

(1) “Room Rental Establishment” means a lodging use, where individual rooms 

within a single dwelling unit are provided for less than 30 consecutive days for a fee 

by pre-arrangement. This shall include bed and breakfasts establishments.  

(2) “Dwelling Unit Rental” means a dwelling unit, typically rented in its entirety, for 

less than 30 consecutive days for a fee by pre-arrangement. 

(e) Processing Requirements. 

(1)  The director shall approve a proposed A bed and breakfastshort-term rental 

establishment, which complies with all the performance standards set forth in this 

section, except as provided in (e)(2). The director may impose conditions of approval 

to ensure that the activity is conducted in a manner consistent with the standards and 

purpose and intent of this section. (B&B) is permitted in specified zoning districts 

subject to conditional use permit approval in accordance with Chapter 22.68 FMC and 

administrative design review approval in accordance with Chapter 22.66 FMC.  

(2) A proposed room rental establishment providing more than two bedrooms 

available for rent is subject to conditional use permit approval in accordance with 

Chapter 22.68 FMC. A B&B shall be established and operated in conformance with 

the following standards and criteria: 

(a)(f) Room Rental Establishment Standards. 

(b) The parcel upon which the B&B is to be established, and the structure, in which it 

will be operated, shall generally conform to all standards of the applicable zoning 

district. 



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
3 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

(1) The B&BRoom rentals shall be an incidental or secondary use to the primary use, 

which is considered to be the principal residential dwelling unit. 

(c) The exterior appearance of the structure housing the B&B shall not be altered 

from its original single-family character. 

(1)(2) The owner/lessee of the structure housing the B&B shall operate the 

establishment and reside on-site. 

(2)(3) Service shall be limited to the rental of bedrooms. Meal service shall be limited 

to the provision of breakfast or light snacks for registered guests. 

(4) A maximum of four bedrooms or suites may be made available for rent. There 

shall be no expansion in the number of guest rooms beyond the number approved. 

(3)(5) No separate or additional kitchens for guests are permitted. Limited cooking 

facilities shall be allowed inside guestrooms, or inside other rooms that are used solely 

by guests, such as small microwaves, and refrigerators. 

(4)(6) Receptions, private parties or similar activities, for which a fee is paid or which 

are allowable as a condition of room rental, may be permitted upon a determination by 

the planning commission that such activities will not significantly impact the adjoining 

neighborhood. 

(d) The parcel upon which the B&B is to be established shall not qualify for city 

approval of an accessory dwelling unit or home occupation in addition to the B&B.  

(e) No B&B shall be located closer than 200 feet to another B&B, as measured in a 

straight line from property line to property line. 

(f) A city business license shall be obtained annually in accordance with Chapter 

5.04 FMC. The B&B shall be exempt from the home occupation requirements of FMC 

22.58.013. 

Signage shall be limited to one nameplate sign not exceeding one and one-half square 

feet in area mounted on an exterior wall of the structure housing the B&B. 

(7) One off-street parking space shall be provided on-site for each rental bedroom. 

The number of required off-street spaces may be reduced by the number of spaces 

available on the street frontage adjoining the parcel upon which the B&Broom rental is 

to be established, if the planning commissiondecision-maker determines that sufficient 

on-street parking will exist to satisfy parking demand in the neighborhood once the 

B&Broom rental has been established. Any additional off-street parking provided in 

conjunction with the B&Broom rental shall, to the extent possible, be located to the 

side or rear of the structure housing the B&Broom rental in order to minimize visual 

impacts on the streetscape. Off-street parking shall be designed to reduce impacts on 

adjoining properties through the installation of vegetative screening and/or fencing. 

The parking surface and additional driveway surface required to provide access to the 

parking area shall be constructed of a permeable , porous or pervious pavers to achieve 

Low Impact Development objectives and surface such as interlocking paving blocks 

(cement or plastic) or other porous pavement which minimizes impervious surface and 

achieves a superior appearance when compared with conventional asphalt or concrete 

pavement. For additional off-street parking standards, see Chapter 22.60 FMC. (Ord. 

1246 § 15, 2000). 

(8) Certification by the building official that the residence complies with fire and life 

and fire safety aspects is required. Inspection fee may apply. 

(g) Dwelling Unit Rental. 

(1) The number of persons per sleeping area shall comply with the International 

Building Code. 

(2) Two off-street parking spaces shall be provided on-site. 

(h) Other Regulations. 

(1) Proof of ownership or approval of property owner is required.  



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
4 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

(2) The room rental shall be exempt from the home occupation requirements of FMC 

22.58.013. 

(1)(3) The exterior appearance of the structure shall maintain its original character. 

(4) Signage shall comply with Chapter 22.26 FMC, Sign Regulations. 

(5) Permits shall lapse and become void if the establishment ceases operation for 

twelve consecutive months, applicant named on the permit moves from or sells the 

site, or the applicant fails to maintain a valid business license. 

 

2. Amend FMC 22.58.013 to read as follows: 

 

22.58.013 Home occupations. 

(a) Purpose and Intent. It is the purpose and intent of this section to: 

(1) Protect residential areas from potential adverse impact of activities defined as 

home occupations; 

(2) Permit Allow residents of the community a broad choice in the use of their homes 

as a place of livelihood and for the production or supplementing of personal and 

family income; and 

(3) Establish criteria and standards for the use of residential structures for home 

occupations. 

(b) Permit Requirement. A home occupation may be carried on upon the issuance of a 

business license pursuant to Chapter 5.04 FMC and the issuance of a home occupation 

permit by the director. 

(c) Submittal Requirements. Application for a home occupation permit shall be made 

upon forms provided by the director, accompanied by a filing fee in accordance with 

the planning services fee schedule established by council resolution. The application 

shall be signed by the owner of the property on which the home occupation activity 

will occur. The application shall also be signed by the business operator if that person 

is different from the property owner. The director may require the submittal of a site 

plan of the premises, floor plans of the residence or accessory building in which the 

use or activity will take place, and other documentation deemed necessary to process 

the application. The plans shall clearly indicate the area where the use or activity will 

take place and any structural alterations intended to accommodate the use or activity. 

(d) Categories of Home Occupation. 

(1) Type I home occupations are those activities, categorized below, which comply 

with all performance standards set forth in subsection (f) of this section. 

(A) Type I-A includes home offices, internet businesses, and similar activities that 

have no traffic or product pickup or deliveries. 

(A)(B) Type I-B includes instruction, counseling, sales, services, and other 

activities that have customer traffic and/or product pickup or deliveries. 

(2) Type II home occupations are those activities which do not comply with one or 

more of the performance standards governing Type I home occupations as set forth in 

subsection (f) of this section but which do comply with the performance standards 

governing Type II home occupations as set forth in subsection (g) of this section. 

(e) Processing Requirements. 

(1) The director shall approve a proposed home occupation, which complies with all 

Type I standards set forth in subsection (f) of this section. The director may impose 

conditions of approval to ensure that the business activity is conducted in a manner 

consistent with the standards and purpose and intent of this section. 

(2) A proposed home occupation which has been determined by the director to not 

comply with one or more Type I standards set forth in subsection (f) of this section 

may be permitted subject to conditional use permit approval by the planning 



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
5 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

commission in accordance with Chapter 22.68 FMC, if the home occupation complies 

with the Type II standards set forth in subsection (g) of this section. 

(f) Type I Home Occupation Standards. 

(1) Only residents of the premises on which the home occupation is located shall 

carry on the home occupation. 

(2) The home occupation shall be carried on entirely within a residence and/or 

detached accessory building. The home occupation shall occupy not more than 25 

percent of the total floor area of the habitable portion of a residence. In no event shall 

such occupancy exceed 400 square feet. 

(3) Any extension of the home occupation to the outdoors, including, but not limited 

to, paving of yards for parking, outdoor storage or activity, and indoor storage or 

activity visible from outdoors (e.g., in an open garage) is prohibited, except that 

vegetables, fruits, flowers and other agricultural products may be grown on the 

premises if production does not exceed what would normally be consumed on the 

premises. 

(4) The home occupation shall not result in the elimination of required on-site 

parking. 

(5) The home occupation shall be conducted in such a manner as to give no outward 

appearance nor manifest any characteristics of a business in terms of deliveries, 

parking, customer trips and other activities, that would infringe upon the right of the 

neighboring residents to enjoy a peaceful occupancy of their homes. 

(6) The home occupation shall not result in structural alteration to the interior or 

exterior of the structure that changes its residential character. 

(7) No equipment shall be used and no activities shall be conducted which would 

result in noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odors, heat, glare or other conditions exceeding 

in duration or intensity than those normally produced by residential use. Normal 

residential use shall be construed as including the above impacts only on an occasional 

weekend or evening basis (e.g., in connection with a hobby or home/yard 

maintenance), and not on a daily basis. 

(8) The home occupation shall not include: (A) automobile, truck or heavy equipment 

repair; (B) body work or painting; (C) outdoor storage of used parts of vehicles and 

used machinery in an inoperable condition; or (D) outside storage of building 

materials such as lumber, plasterboard, pipe, paint or other construction materials. 

(9) The home occupation shall not include parking or storage of heavy equipment, 

including trucks of over one ton load capacity or commercial vehicles in excess of 

10,000 gross vehicle weight (GVW), within a public right-of-way or on private 

property outside of unless within a fully enclosed building. 

(10) Persons in building trades and similar fields using their homes or apartments as 

offices for business activities conducted off the residential premises may have other 

employees or independent contractors; provided, that such employees or independent 

contractors do not perform labor or personal services on the residential premises, park 

on or near the residential premises, or check in at the residential premises during the 

course of business. 

(11) The home occupation may include limited on-premises sales of products or stock-

in-trade, provided the applicant can clearly demonstrate that such sales will not be 

inconsistent with other Type I standards. Examples of allowable on-premises sales 

include cosmetics or similar products associated with a business where most products 

are delivered to a customer’s address, hair care products associated with a 

barber/beauty shop and instructional materials pertinent to the home occupation, e.g., 

music books. The display or storage of products or stock-in-trade outside a residence 

or in a window is prohibited, except that vegetables, fruits, flowers and other 



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
6 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

agricultural products grown on the premises may be offered for sale out-of-doors 

during the growing season. 

(12) Activities conducted and equipment or material used shall not change the fire 

safety or occupancy classifications of the premises. Utility consumption shall not 

exceed normal residential usage. 

(13) The home occupation shall not generate significantly greater traffic volume than 

would normally be expected in the particular residential zone or neighborhood in 

which the home occupation is conducted. Generally, delivery and pickup of materials 

to and from the premises by a commercial vehicle should not exceed two trips per 

week. For the purpose of this section, commercial vehicles shall not exceed a gross 

vehicle weight of 20,000 pounds. Also, generally, traffic generated by a home 

occupation should not exceed four round trips per day. 

(14) If the home occupation is the type in which classes are held or instruction given, 

there shall be no more than two students allowed in any one class or instruction period. 

(15)(14) Signage shall be limited to one nonilluminated nameplate not exceeding 

one and one-half square feet in area mounted to an exterior wall or window of the 

dwelling. Signage shall be consistent with the provisions of Chapter 22.26 FMC. 

(g) Type II Home Occupation Standards. 

(1) The home occupation will not harm the character of the surrounding 

neighborhood;. 

(2) The home occupation will not include storage, use or operation of building 

materials, machinery, commercial vehicles or tools, unless: 

(A) The activity is wholly enclosed within a structure or building; 

(B) The activity would not result in noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odors, heat, glare or 

other conditions exceeding in duration or intensity those normally produced by 

residential use. Normal residential use shall be construed as including the above 

impacts only on an occasional weekend or evening basis (e.g., in connection with a 

hobby or home/yard maintenance), and not on a daily basis;. 

(3) The home occupation will not create a condition which injures or endangers the 

comfort, repose, health and safety of persons on abutting properties or streets;. 

(4) The home occupation will not generate excessive traffic or necessitate excessive 

parking beyond that normally associated with residential use in the neighborhood in 

which the home occupation is located;. 

(5) The home occupation will include no more than two nonresident employees 

working on-site when nonresident employees are involved. The home occupation may 

have additional employees or independent contractors; provided, that such employees 

or independent contractors do not perform labor or personal services on the residential 

premises, park on or near the residential premises, or physically check in at the 

residential premises during the course of business;. 

(6) The home occupation will not include the outdoor display and sale of products or 

stock in trade, unless the applicant can demonstrate that such on-premises sales will 

not result in noncompliance with other applicable standards governing Type I and 

Type II home occupations; and. 

(7) The home occupation will comply with Chapter 22.26 FMC, Sign Regulations. 

(h) Other Regulations. 

(1) Home occupations shall comply with all other local, state or federal regulations 

pertinent to the activity pursued, and the requirements or permission granted or 

implied by this section shall not be construed as an exemption from these regulations. 

(2) Home occupation permits are issued to an individual applicant and shall not be 

transferred or otherwise assigned to any other person. The permit will automatically 

expire when the applicant named on the permit application moves from the site or 



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
7 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

moves the business from the site. The home occupation shall also automatically expire 

if the permittee fails to maintain a valid business license or the business license is 

suspended or revoked. The home occupation shall not be transferred to any site other 

than that described on the application form. 

(3) Two or more home occupation permits may be issued for the same location if it is 

determined that the sum of the businesses still meets the requirements of this chapter. 

(2)(4) The home occupation will comply with Chapter 22.26 FMC, Sign Regulations. 

(i) Exemptions. The following activities shall be exempt from the provisions of this 

section: 

(1) Garage sales, yard sales, bake sales, occasional parties for the sale or distribution 

of goods or services, and other like uses; provided, that any such garage sales and yard 

sales involve only the sale of household goods, none of which were purchased for the 

purpose of resale. If the collective total of all such sales and/or parties exceeds four 

events or 12 days in any calendar year, then such sales and/or parties shall be 

considered a home occupation; and 

(2) Family day-care facilities licensed by the Washington State Department of Social 

and Health Services. ; and 

(3) Telecommuting, remote work and other alternative work options; provided in 

which the resident is an employee of an off-site company, a business license is not 

required, and the work does not require deliveries or customers visiting the home. 

(j) Permit Fee Exemptions. Nonprofit organizations as defined by FMC 5.04.100c 

must apply for a home occupation permit but are exempt from a home occupation 

permit fee. Nonprofit organizations that are categorized as Type II home occupations 

are not exempt from the conditional use permit fee.   

 

3. Amending FMC 22.58.024 to read as follows: 

 

22.58.024 Outdoor parking or storage of vehicles. 

 

(a) Outdoor Storage ofInoperable Vehicles. The outdoor parking or storage of 

inoperable and/or unlicensed vehicles or parts thereof is permitted prohibited in a 

residential district for a period not to exceed six days. Outdoor storage for a period 

exceeding six days is permitted in a residential zoning district, except as subject to the 

following provisions: 

(1) The outdoor storage of no more than three one inoperable and/or unlicensed 

vehicles and vehicle parts is permitted when they are screened from neighboring 

properties and the public right-of-way by a solid fence or approved landscaping.  

(2) Storage of inoperable and/or unlicensed vehicles is prohibited in required front or 

side yard setback areas.  

(1)(3) Open Unenclosed or unscreened storage of an inoperable vehicles is 

permitted for a 14-day period while a vehicle is undergoing or awaiting repairs. 

(2) In no event shall any outdoor storage of commercial vehicles in excess of 10,000 

GVW be permitted. 

(3)(4) Approved landscaping is defined as follows: 

(A) Vegetative Screen. The approved landscaping must consist of: evergreen shrubs, 

at a rate of one per five lineal feet of landscape strip; or closely spaced evergreen trees, 

at a rate of one per eight lineal feet of landscape strip, or a combination of the two in 

separate sections. The screen may consist of either overlapping clusters or a solid row 

of material. If overlapping clusters are used, the overlap should be at least one-half 

plant width. Spacing shall be as follows: evergreen trees for the landscape screen at no 

greater than eight feet on center, with no more than 10 feet on center between cluster; 



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
8 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

shrubs for the landscape screen shall be no greater than five feet on center, with no 

greater than seven feet on center between clusters. Vegetative screening materials shall 

have a minimum mature height of six feet. Installation of vegetative ground cover is 

encouraged but not required within the planting area; or 

(B) Berm. The approved landscaping must consist of an earthen berm a minimum of 

four feet high, measured from street curb or the crown of the adjacent paved way for 

road frontages or existing grade for interior lot lines. Vegetative groundcover shall 

cover a minimum of 50 percent of the landscape strip area at maturity. Berms less than 

six feet in height shall be planted with evergreen shrubs, at a rate of one per four lineal 

feet of landscape strip, to a mature height equal to or greater than six-foot high berm. 

The screen may consist of either overlapping groupings or a solid row of material. If 

overlapping groupings are used, the overlap should be at least one-half plant width. 

Shrub spacing shall be no greater than four feet on center, with no greater than six feet 

on center between groupings; and 

(C) Canopy Vegetation. In addition to the requirements of subsection (a)(4)(A) of this 

section, Vegetative Screen, and subsection (a)(4)(B) of this section, Berm, trees, at a 

rate of one per 25 lineal feet of lot line, shall be interspersed throughout the landscape 

strip in groupings or uniform rows. Spacing shall be no greater than 25 feet on center 

with uniform spacing or 50 feet on center between groupings. Minimum mature height 

shall be 20 feet; 

(D) Screen Width. All approved landscaping shall be located adjacent to the lot line 

with no required vegetation located greater than 30 feet from the lot line. No buildings 

or impervious surfaces, with the exception of pedestrian walks connecting the site to 

adjacent property, shall be located between the interior edge of the screen width and 

the lot line. 

(b) Commercial Vehicles. Outdoor parking or storage of semi-trucks, semi-cabs, 

tractor trailers, heavy equipment, or any commercial vehicles in excess of 10,000 gross 

vehicle weight (GVW), is not permitted in a residential zone whether located on a 

public right-of-way or private property. This provision does not apply to temporary 

parking for delivery, pick-up, moving or service activities. Heavy 

construction/development equipment may only be parked on a site that is undergoing a 

permitted or approved activity. 

(c) Outdoor Storage of Boats and Nonmotorized Recreation Vehicles, Watercraft and 

Trailers. The outdoor storage of up to two (total) motorizedboats or nonmotorized 

recreation vehicles, motorized or nonmotorized watercraft, and trailers is permitted in 

a residential zoning district, subject to the following provisions: 

(1) Nonmotorized recreation vehicles include, but are not limited to, camper trailers, 

tent trailers, and boat and recreation vehicle trailers.For this chapter a motorized or 

nonmotorized watercraft on a trailer shall be counted as one vehicle.  

(1) Nonmotorized recreation vehicles do not include bicycles and similar sports 

equipment. 

(2) The combined limit on the number of boats and nonmotorized recreational 

vehicles that may be stored on a parcel is two, except as permitted in subsection (b)(3) 

of this section. A boat on a trailer shall be counted as one boat.One such vehicle may 

be stored in the side yard, provided it does not extend beyond the front of the house 

and is screened from the closest abutting property by a solid fence or approved 

landscaping as defined in subsection (a)(3) of this section. 

(3) Outdoor storage of additional boats and/or nonmotorized recreation vVehicless 

shall be may be stored in the side street side yard or rear yard, provided it is screened 

from neighboring properties and the public right-of-way by a solid fence or approved 



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
9 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

landscaping as defined in subsection (a)(34) of this section. Storage of additional 

vehicles is prohibited in required front or side yard setbacks.  

(4) One vehicle may be located in the front yard if parked perpendicular to the right-

of-way, provided the vehicle does not extend beyond the property line and is screened 

from the closest abutting property by approved landscaping at least six feet in height. 

(5) A vehicle may be parked on the driveway of a residence for a period not to exceed 

three days in a seven day period for the purpose of loading and unloading. 

(6) Vehicles shall be parked on an approved driveway, an existing impermeable pad 

established prior to the effective date of this ordinance, or a permeable, porous, or 

pervious surfaces that meet or exceed the standards outlined in the latest edition of the 

Department of Ecology Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington for 

Low Impact Development. 

(7) Vehicles shall be operable and maintained in a clean, well-kept state that does not 

detract from the appearance of the surrounding area. Inoperable, extensively damaged 

and/or unlicensed vehicles shall be treated as “junk vehicles” per Chapter 9.64 FMC.  

(8) Subject to the above restrictions, recreational vehicles may be occupied on a 

temporary basis not to exceed 30 days within one calendar year. Exceptions may be 

approved by the Director for a period not to exceed 6 months when temporary shelter 

is required to support an individual experiencing serious illness and needing assistance 

from the property owner on which the recreational vehicle is located. 

(d) Passenger Vehicles. Parking in locations other than a designated driveway or 

parking surface is not permitted in required front or side street side yard setbacks in a 

residential zoning district. Parking shall be permitted upon designated driveways and 

parking surfaces as defined in FMC 22.60.008(e) and (h).  

 

4. Amend FMC 22.98.594 to read as follows: 

 

22.98.594 Recreational vehicle.  

 

“Recreational vehicles” means all vehicles, self-propelled or propelled by another 

vehicle, designed primarily for touring with living/or sleeping quarters on board. 

Includes, but is not limited to, campers, travel trailers and motor homes. “Recreational 

vehicles” does not include bicycles and similar sports equipment. 

 

5. Adding FMC 22.98.604.1 to read as follows: 

 

22.98.604.1 Remote Work.  
 

“Remote Work” means a situation in which an employee works off-site and 

communicates with the company via the computer, email and telephone. 

 

6. Adding FMC 22.98.697.1 to read as follows: 

 

22.98.697.1 Telecommuting.  
 

“Telecommuting” means to work at home by making use of the internet, email and the 

telephone to remain linked to one’s place of employment. 

 

 

 



 
 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 Attachment 1 
10 of 10 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

MOVED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Fircrest on the 

5th day of September, 2017 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: (5) McVay, McGinnis, Patjens, Halgren, Michaelsen 

 

 



Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 ATTACHMENT 2 

Comments Received 

 
 Nancy Atwood 

o August 16, 2017 
 

 Daniel DeLorenzo 
o August 16, 2017 

 

 Penny Drost 
o August 11, 2017 
o August 16, 2017 

  

 Arnold and Jennifer Lytle 
o August 10, 2017 
o September 12, 2017 





1

Angelie Stahlnecker

From: Dan DeLorenzo <dan-delorenzo@leavitt.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2017 3:47 PM
To: Angelie Stahlnecker
Subject: August 2017 City of Fircrest Town Topics

Angelie: 
 
I read this month’s issue of Town Topics and noticed the Planning Commission topic regarding amending the regulations 
related to storage of RV’s and other vehicles. I like what I read and appreciate the suggested changes. Normally you will 
only hear from the minority on a topic like this who do not want change, so I want to voice my opinion supporting what 
the City Council and Planning Commission are looking into.  
 
Thank you for your help in improving the regulations and our community.  
 
Best Regards, Daniel DeLorenzo 
 

   
         Northwest                                 Daniel J. DeLorenzo, CIC 
                                             Director, Commercial Lines Public Sector Division 

  

2121 70th Avenue West, Ste B  |  University Place, WA 98466 
Main: 253.565.3500 ext 3103 | Fax: 253.565.7209 | 
 dan-delorenzo@leavitt.com| www.leavitt.com/northwest 
 
 
 

 
 



Email 1 
 
From: PENNY M DROST <drostpe@msn.com> 
Date: August 11, 2017 at 8:42:54 AM PDT 
To: "hgeorge@cityoffircrest.net" <hgeorge@cityoffircrest.net> 
Cc: "mjolibois@cityoffircrest.net" <mjolibois@cityoffircrest.net>, "sreynolds@cityoffircrest.net" 
<sreynolds@cityoffircrest.net>, "bwittner@cityoffircrest.net" <bwittner@cityoffircrest.net>, 
"dwaltier@cityoffircrest.net" <dwaltier@cityoffircrest.net>, "jmedley@cityoffircrest.net" 
<jmedley@cityoffircrest.net> 
 

Subject: Resolution regarding travel trailers parked on residential property 

Good Morning Members of the Fircrest City Council,  

What is the status of the Planning Commission's Resolution 17-06 recommending that Fircrest 
citizens not be allowed to have a recreational vehicle parked in their driveway for more than 3 
days?  I completely understand the junk vehicle prohibition, but not this for well-maintained, 
licensed travel trailers.  I am so opposed to this restriction and I wonder why residents with 
such recreational vehicles in plain sight were not personally made aware of this pending rule. 
The police obviously could have carried notices in their vehicles and dropped them off while on 
patrol, you are a team. I only found out about this yesterday from a friend who lives in UP and I 
don't know how she found out.  I belong to the neighborhood blog Nextdoor Fircrest and have 
seen nothing there. Why not? My next-door neighbor has a well-maintained utility trailer 
(about the same size as my mini-travel trailer) to the side of his driveway which 
is  completely visible to me and only partially blocked by a hedge on the opposite side. I have 
never thought this was a big deal and it was there long before I bought my mini-travel trailer in 
2014.  He also stores his brother's camper van for part of the year in the same place. 
Next  to this neighbor another well-maintained, licensed mini-travel trailer is stored in the 
driveway.  Again, no big deal.  I don't understand other than for junk vehicles why this 
resolution is even needed. This resolution is going to cost people for off-site storage. Existing 
well-maintained, licensed vehicles within the provisions of this resolution need to be 
grandfathered in as legally allowed. That is the only fair way to move forward - if you even have 
to move forward.  This is a city, not a planned community with a HOA or other covenant ruling 
document.  

I look forward to hearing from you and if an important council vote date for this resolution is 
coming up, please let me know. 

Thanks, 
Penny Drost 
253 970 1533 
drostpe@msn.com 
944 Alameda Avenue 



(5) If there is no reasonable access to a rear or side yard, one vehicle may be located in the 
front yard if parked on the driveway, perpendicular to the right-of-way, provided the vehicle 
does not extend beyond the property line and is screened from the closest abutting property by 
approved landscaping at least six feet in height. (6) A vehicle may be parked on the driveway of 
a residence for a period not to exceed three days in a seven day period for the purpose of 
loading and unloading. (7) Vehicles shall be operable and maintained in a clean, well-kept state 
that does not detract from the appearance of the surrounding area. Inoperable, extensively 
damaged and/or unlicensed vehicles shall be treated as “junk vehicles” per Chapter 9.64 FMC. 
(8) Subject to the above restrictions, recreational vehicles may be occupied on a temporary 
basis not to exceed 30 days within one calendar year. Exceptions may be approved by the 
Director for a period not to exceed 6 months when temporary shelter is required to support an 
individual experiencing serious illness and needing assistance from the property owner on 
which the recreational vehicle is located. (d)  

Email 2 
 
From: "PENNY M DROST" <drostpe@msn.com> 
To: "Matthew P. Jolibois" <mjolibois@cityoffircrest.net>, "Shannon Reynolds" 
<sreynolds@cityoffircrest.net>, "Brett Wittner" <bwittner@cityoffircrest.net>, "Blake Surina" 
<bsurina@cityoffircrest.net>, "Hunter T. George" <hgeorge@cityoffircrest.net>, "Denny Waltier" 
<dwaltier@cityoffircrest.net>, "Jason Medley" <jmedley@cityoffircrest.net> 
 
Subject: Follow up to this morning's email regarding the resolution on travel trailers in driveways 
Good Afternoon Fircrest City Council Members; 
 
Attached are some photos which show real aesthetic problems in our city.  It took me five minutes to 
get these photos, which are all taken just around my home.  
 
The "nobigtoystoday" photo was taken at a house where giant blowup kids toys sit on and off all 
summer long.  
 
Again, I am so opposed to prohibiting driveway storage of travel trailers which are licensed and well-
maintained. I am also very unhappy that I was not notified of this pending resolution.  Fircrest is a small 
city, homes with recreational vehicles in their driveways are easy to spot.  Why was no apparent effort 
made to let us know this was coming? If this resolution is passed it is going to cost citizens money for 
off-site storage and that is not cheap. What were/are you thinking? We are a city not a HOA 
community.  
 
Penny Drost 
253 970 1533 
drostpe@msn.com 
944 Alameda Avenue 
 



1

Angelie Stahlnecker

From: PENNY M DROST <drostpe@msn.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2017 8:18 AM
To: Angelie Stahlnecker
Subject: Case #17-06

Dear Members of the Planning Commission; 
 

I am writing to follow up on my final remarks last evening regarding storage of recreational vehicles, 
specifically (6) A vehicle may be parked on the driveway of a residence for a period not to exceed three days in 
a seven day period for the purpose of loading and unloading. 

  

Although it is not stated in the document, during your discussion period staff said that (6) only applies to 
recreational vehicles stored off-site.  

  

I am wondering why this provision is even included. What does it matter how many days a recreational vehicle 
is on the driveway for loading and unloading when it is permissible to store a recreational vehicle on the 
driveway permanently? These types of provisions are like litter in ordinances and only serve to confuse 
residents.  

  

I ask that you eliminate (6) before sending your recommendation to the city council.  

  

In general, I believe all of the provisions relating to recreational vehicle on-site storage are inappropriate for a 
municipality. The city has a proper and relevant role in dealing with junk and derelict vehicles, but these 
provisions wander into HOA territory. Anyone who has lived in a HOA community, as I have, will tell you that 
the enforcement of covenants can be very difficult. As a result, only those easy to enforce are enforced and the 
rest are ignored. This completely discourages voluntary compliance. The city would be hard pressed to justify 
requiring people to put in and maintain a six foot high landscaping screen for their trailer while a house down 
the street has peeling paint, a moss covered roof and junk in the front yard. 

 
Thank you, 
 
Penny Drost 
944 Alameda Avenue 
253-970-1533 
drostpe@msn.com 
 
 
 
 
 







Case #17-06  October 10, 2017 Attachment 3 
 

CITY OF FIRCREST PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

June 6, 2017  Fircrest City Hall 

6:00 PM  115 Ramsdell Street 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chair Karen Patjens called the regular meeting of the Fircrest Planning Commission to order at 

6:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Commissioners Kathy L. McVay, Jerry Foss, Karen Patjens, Kenneth Halgren, and Arne 

Michaelsen were present. Absent: None. Excused: None. Staff present: Planning and Building 

Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker and Administrative Assistant Abbie Maenhout. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes for the meeting of March 7, 2017 were presented for approval. 

 

Moved by Foss and seconded by Patjens to approve the minutes. Ayes:  Kathy L. McVay, 

Jerry Foss, Karen Patjens, Kenneth Halgren, and Arne Michaelsen. Noes: None.  Absent: 

None. Excused: None. Motion carried.  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

None. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Case 17-06 Amendments to FMC 22.58.011, .013, and .024 related to short-term rentals, home 

occupations and outdoor storage of vehicles 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker presented an overview of the topics 

referred to the Planning Commission by the City Council to study and make recommendations 

on: regulating short-term rentals (Airbnb), amending home occupation standards, and limiting 

and/or restricting outdoor storage of inoperable cars, recreational vehicles, and boats in front 

yards. 

 

Discussion included: 

 

 Regulating short-term rentals 

 Some communities are concerned short-term rentals could impact housing availability  

 Revising the bed and breakfast regulation to include short-term rentals 

 Short-term rentals are a business and should be treated as such 



June 6, 2017 Fircrest Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 

Case #17-06  October 10, 2017 Attachment 3 
 

 Long-term rentals are not currently licensed, but the City Council is considering 

 Creating two sub-tiers for Type I home occupations  

 Consider allowing a home occupation to be enclosed in an accessory building 

 Prohibiting storage of recreational vehicle and boats in the front yard 

 Requiring minimal condition standards for recreational vehicles and boats 

 Tightening regulations could increase enforcement difficulties 

 Limits on visiting recreational vehicles  

 Many parcels do not have backyard access 

 Prohibiting all parking on front yard lawns 

 

Patjens invited public comment. 

 

Sue Asher, 1137 Garden Circle: She owns a house at 805 Spring Street and would support 

prohibiting vehicles from being allowed to park on the lawn.  

 

MISC. 

 

There was consensus to move the July 5 regular meeting to Monday, July 10, 2017. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Moved by Foss and seconded by Halgren to adjourn the meeting at 7:09 p.m.  Ayes:  Kathy 

L. McVay, Jerry Foss, Karen Patjens, Kenneth Halgren, and Arne Michaelsen. Noes: 

None.  Absent: None. Excused: None. Motion carried. 

 



Case #17-06  October 10, 2017 Attachment 4 
 

CITY OF FIRCREST PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

July 10, 2017  Fircrest City Hall 

6:00 PM  115 Ramsdell Street 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chair Karen Patjens called the regular meeting of the Fircrest Planning Commission to order at 

6:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Commissioners Kathy L. McVay, Cameron McGinnis, Karen Patjens, and Kenneth Halgren 

were present. Absent: Arne Michaelsen. Excused: None. Staff present: Planning and Building 

Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker and Administrative Assistant Abbie Maenhout. Michaelsen 

arrived at 6:10 p.m. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes for the meeting of June 6, 2017 were presented for approval. 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Halgren to approve the minutes. Upon vote, motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Case 17-07 Major Variance to construct accessory building in required setback 

 

Karen Patjens opened the public hearing for Case 17-07 at 6:02 p.m. 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker presented the staff report for the 

request to construct a 192 square foot accessory structure (shed) in the required 25’ setback of a 

through-lot. Staff entered into the record Exhibit #9, written comment received prior to the 

hearing. 

 

Staff responded to Commission inquiries. 

 

The applicant, Jeff Gordon, stated his concerns over anonymous complaint letters, shared other 

instances of setback encroachments, and stated he will construct it with high standards.  

 

Patjens invited public comments. 

 

Charles Hart, 1214 Palm Drive, concurred that variances should not be common, but felt the 

applicant met the criteria. 

 



July 10, 2017 Fircrest Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 

Case #17-06  October 10, 2017 Attachment 4 
 

Aaron Pasco, 1208 Coral Drive, stated he is a neighbor of Mr. Gordon, helped construct the 

shed, and supports the variance. 

 

Leonard Smith, 1570 Weathervane Drive, stated his support for the variance. 

 

Patjens closed the public hearing at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Halgren to adopt Resolution No. 17-05, approving a 

major variance to permit construction of a 192 square foot accessory structure with a 3-

foot setback from the rear property line of a through-lot.  Upon vote, motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Unfinished Business: 

 

Case 17-06 Amendments to FMC 22.58, related to short-term rentals, home occupations and 

outdoor storage of vehicles 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker introduced draft development 

regulation for FMC 22.58.011 Short-term rentals, 22.58.013 Home Occupations, and 22.58.024 

Outdoor parking or storage of vehicles. A brief slideshow displayed properties within Fircrest 

that have recreational vehicles in the front or side yard. 

 

Discussion included: 

 

 Removing toaster oven from allowed cooking devices 

 Establishing two tiers for Type 1 Home Occupations to allow creation of a lower fee for 

less impactful businesses 

 Exempting minors from permit requirement  

 A business owned by a minor may still have impacts that need regulating  

 The proposed second tier, would make permit requirement less costly for minor 

 Adding unlicensed vehicles to inoperable vehicle definitions 

 Limiting outdoor storage to one inoperable vehicle 

 Replacing ‘may’ with ‘shall’ in standard for treating inoperable or extensively damaged 

recreational vehicles as junk vehicles 

 Reducing the recreational vehicle limit to one  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Michaelsen to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m.  Upon 

vote, motion carried unanimously. 
 



Case #17-06  October 10, 2017 Attachment 5 
 

CITY OF FIRCREST PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

August 15, 2017  Fircrest City Hall 

6:00 PM  115 Ramsdell Street 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chair Karen Patjens called the regular meeting of the Fircrest Planning Commission to order at 

6:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Commissioners Kathy L. McVay, Cameron McGinnis, Karen Patjens, Kenneth Halgren and 

Arne Michaelsen were present. Absent: None. Excused: None. Staff present: Planning and 

Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker and Administrative Assistant Abbie Maenhout.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes for the meeting of July 10, 2017 were presented for approval. 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Michaelsen to approve the minutes. Upon vote, motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Case 17-07 Proposed amendments to FMC Sections 22.58.011, Short-term rental establishments, 

FMC 22.58.013 Home Occupations, FMC 22.58.024 Outdoor Parking or Storage of Vehicles 

and FMC Chapter 22.98 Definitions. 

 

Karen Patjens opened the public hearing for Case 17-07 at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker presented the staff report for the 

proposed amendments. Staff entered into the record written comments received prior to the 

hearing. 

 

Patjens invited public comments. 

 

Todd Crawford, 1127 Magnolia Drive, stated opposition to RV regulations, which would create a 

burden on responsible property owners. 

 

Alex Koerger, 127 Golden Gate, stated concern over the cost of an administrative use permit as it 

related to permitting short-term rentals.  

 

Cheryl Capps McCabe, 1317 Magnolia Court, asked if the home occupation regulations would 

allow them to park their commercial cube van on their property and how RV regulations would 

affect their trailer. 



August 15, 2017 Fircrest Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 

Case #17-06  October 10, 2017 Attachment 5 
 

 

Penny Drost, 944 Alameda Ave, asked the purpose of amending the RV regulations and stated 

she wouldn’t be able to park her RV anywhere but the driveway. 

 

Ken Walls, 1117 Paradise Parkway, stated his desire for a medical exemption from the RV 

regulations. 

 

Christine Beasley, 221 Alameda Avenue, asked if sloped yards would be considered when 

determining access. 

 

Pam Sollars, 600 San Juan Avenue, stated her concern over the appearance of boats and RVs in 

the front yard and concern over the appearance of commercial trucks being parked along the 

street. 

 

David Viafore, 1120 Paradise Parkway, stated this is unnecessary zoning to address a few 

problems, concerned about impact to residents that own RVs, questioned the legality of 

regulating short-term rental business, and concern over difference in regulation commercial 

vehicles if they have a home occupation.  

 

Angella Creguer, 915 Manor Drive, concerned about regulation that would require them to park 

on their driveway instead of an existing pad and the expense of creating a porous surface.  

 

Mike Diloreto, 1127 Magnolia Drive, asked about grandfathering of existing RVs. 

 

Jennifer Andres, 347 Summit Avenue stated these regulations feel like a home owners 

association and feels this is overstepping government purpose. Feels should be allowed to park 

her boat in her yard. 

 

Leonard Smith, 1570 Weathervane Drive, stated concern that crushed rock is not considered a 

permeable surface, feels the regulations are overstepping, and concerned over limited time for 

inoperable vehicles waiting for parts.  

 

Paul Anders, 1210 Regents Blvd, concerned over 14 day limit for inoperable vehicles. 

 

Alice McDaniel, 1315 Coral Drive, stated her disappointment that the scope was narrowed to 

short-term rentals instead of the original discussion which was long-term rentals and continued 

concern over a neighboring rental property. 

 

Discussion included: 

 

 Staff suggestion to create a short-term rental permit instead of using the administrative 

use permit process.  

 Continuation of the conditional use permit process for rentals over two rooms. 

 Street parking concerns should be directed to the Police Department. 

 Clarifying that short-term rentals are considered businesses while long-term rentals are 

considered residences and are regulated differently. 



August 15, 2017 Fircrest Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 

Case #17-06  October 10, 2017 Attachment 5 
 

 The home occupation prohibition of vehicles over one ton associated with a home 

occupation is current code and not a proposed change. 

 The proposed code prioritizes side and rear yards for parking RVs and boats, but would 

allow one in the front yard if there is no access to side and rear. 

 Proposed code to allow temporary occupancy of a RV would not except it from other 

requirements of the section 

 Using the Department of Ecology Stormwater Management Manual for determining 

permeable surfaces provides consistent application.  

 While driveways are typically impervious, requiring additional parking surfaces to be 

pervious would support the Comprehensive Plan’s goal of low impact development. 

 The loading and unloading provision was to provide an exception for vehicles that were 

parked off-site or normally would be required to be parked in the side or rear yard. 

 Vegetation and fencing requirements are to provide screening for neighbors who may not 

wish to look at a parked RV or boat. 

 Fourteen-day limit of inoperable and unlicensed vehicles. 

 

At 7:35, Patjens stated the Commission would take a brief recess. 

 

At 7:37, Patjens reconvened the meeting. 

 

Patjens closed the public hearing at 7:38 p.m. 

 

The Planning Commission directed staff to bring back more information on: 

 

 Creating a short-term rental permit process to replace the administrative use permit 

process. 

 Amending regulation of commercial vehicles associated with home occupations. 

 Allowing one recreational vehicle or boat in the front yard outright, instead of as an 

exception. 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by McGinnis to continue discussion to the September 5, 

2017 meeting.  Upon vote, motion carried unanimously. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Moved by Michaelsen and seconded by McVay to adjourn the meeting at 8:04 p.m.  Upon 

vote, motion carried unanimously. 
 



 

Case #17-06 October 10, 2017 - Draft Attachment 6 

CITY OF FIRCREST PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

September 5, 2017  Fircrest City Hall 

6:00 PM  115 Ramsdell Street 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chair Karen Patjens called the regular meeting of the Fircrest Planning Commission to order at 

6:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Commissioners Kathy L. McVay, Cameron McGinnis, Karen Patjens, Kenneth Halgren and 

Arne Michaelsen were present. Absent: None. Excused: None. Staff present: Planning and 

Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker and Administrative Assistant Abbie Maenhout.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes for the meeting of August 15, 2017 were presented for approval. 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Michaelsen to approve the minutes. Upon vote, motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Case No. 17-08 – Recommendation to Annex Potential Annexation Area 

 

Karen Patjens opened the public hearing for Case 17-08 at 6:01 p.m. 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker presented the staff report for the 

proposal to annex the potential annexation area through interlocal agreement with Pierce County, 

designating the area Low Density Residential, zoning the area Residential-4 zoning, and 

establishing the street names and addresses. 

 

Patjens invited public comments. 

 

Yolanda Brooks, 6448 19th St. W, stated she used to live in the area and questioned reason for 

the annexation as people in the area were previously opposed. 

 

Dan Moffett, 4422 72nd Avenue Court West, stated he owned two of the properties in the 

potential annexation area and supported the annexation for sewer access, improved emergency 

services, less confusion by being in a designated boundary and belief that the overall cost 

difference would be a wash. Requested information on who would vote in a referendum. 

 

Patjens closed the public hearing at 6:15 p.m. 

 



September 15, 2017 Fircrest Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 

Case #17-08 October 10, 2017 - Draft Attachment 6 
 

Discussion included: 

 

 Verifying the residents and property owners had received notice 

 Direction to provide referendum information to Mr. Moffett 

 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Michaelsen to adopt Resolution No. 17-07, a resolution 

of the Planning Commission of the City of Fircrest, Washington recommending annexation 

of the potential annexation area through interlocal agreement with Pierce County, 

designating the area Low Density Residential, zoning the area Residential-4 zoning, and 

changing the street names and addresses. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

Case No. 17-09 – 2017 Comprehensive plan Amendments and Pre-Annexation Land Use 

Designation and Zoning Classifications 

 

Karen Patjens opened the public hearing for Case 17-09 at 6:20 p.m. 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker presented the staff report for the 

proposed amendments.  

 

Patjens invited public comments. 

 

No comments were received. 

 

Patjens closed the public hearing at 6:26 p.m. 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Halgren to adopt Resolution No. 17-08, a resolution of 

the Planning Commission of the City of Fircrest, Washington recommending adoption of 

amendments to the Capital Facilities and Land Use Elements of the City of Fircrest 

Comprehensive Plan and establishment of a pre-annexation land use designation and 

zoning classification for the potential annexation area. Upon vote, motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

Case 17-07 Proposed amendments to FMC Sections 22.58.011, Short-term rental establishments, 

FMC 22.58.013 Home Occupations, FMC 22.58.024 Outdoor Parking or Storage of Vehicles 

and FMC Chapter 22.98 Definitions. 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker presented topics referred to staff from 

the August 15, 2017 public hearing. Recommended amendments to draft proposal included: 

 

 Replacing the administrative use process by establishing a short-term rental permit 

process 



September 15, 2017 Fircrest Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 

Case #17-08 October 10, 2017 - Draft Attachment 6 
 

 Amending the home occupation language by adding “or commercial vehicles in excess of 

10,000 gross vehicle weight (GVW)” to vehicles prohibited unless fully enclosed. 

 Amending the outdoor parking of recreational vehicles to allow one vehicle to be parked 

in the front yard 

 Amend allowed parking surfaces to include existing impermeable pads 

 

No Discussion 

 

Moved by McVay and seconded by Michaelsen to adopt Resolution No. 17-06, a resolution 

of the Planning Commission of the City of Fircrest, Washington recommending adoption of 

amendments to chapter FMC 22.58 specific use and structure regulations, including short-

term rental establishments, home occupations, outdoor storage of vehicles, and FMC 22.98 

definitions. Upon vote, motion carried unanimously. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Case No. 17-10 – Zoning Code Amendments 

 

Planning and Building Administrator Angelie Stahlnecker introduced draft development 

regulation for FMC Title 22 intended to clarify code administration, fine tune regulations, and 

respond to input and direction received since the most recent rounds of amendments in 2015-

2016. 

 

Discussion included: 

 Amendments to the articulation language  

 Amendments to the R-4C zone 

 Reference the Multi-family design standards and guidelines in zones that allow multi-

family 

 Uses allowed in the CMU, including mini-storage and assisted living facilities  

 Revising “vacated” properties to “abandoned” properties based on case law 

 Adding language for binding site plans 

 Amendments to drive-through facilities regulations 

 Adding an “administrative interpretations” section based on legal counsel advise 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Moved by McVay and seconded by McGinnis to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 p.m.  Upon 

vote, motion carried unanimously. 
 

 

       

  Karen Patjens, Planning Commission Chair 

 

 

        

Angelie Stahlnecker, Planning/Building Administrator 



























 
 
 
 

Applicant Information 
 

Liquor License Renewal 
 
 
 

Applicant Name Roller Skate Northwest 
Establishment Name Rollin 253 
Address 2101 Mildred St W 

Comments 
 
Zoned Commercial Mixed Use in an annexed area. This is a 
permitted use. Planning/Building has no objection to the license 
renewals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director Signature Angelie Stahlnecker 
Date 10/18/2017 Department Planning/Building 

 







The Interagency Agreement asks us to participate in DUI and other emphasis patrols during the 
following time frames: 

• Holiday DUI Patrols:  December 13, 2017 to January 1, 2018
• Distracted Driving Patrols: April 2 – April 14, 2018
• Click it or Ticket: May 14 – June 3, 2017
• Driver Sober or Get Pulled Over - August 17 – September 3, 2018

We will also be hosting an emphasis patrol during the weekend Cinco de Mayo is celebrated. 

The following agencies are in the process of signing MOU’s with the Washington Traffic Safety 
Commission: Pierce County Sheriff’s Department; Tacoma Police Department; Gig Harbor 
Police Department; University Place Police Department; Steilacoom Police Department; DuPont 
Police Department; Lakewood Police Department; Milton Police Department; Fife Police 
Department; Edgewood Police Department; Orting Police Department; Ruston Police 
Department; Puyallup Police Department; Steilacoom Police Department; Sumner Police 
Department; Bonney Lake Police Department; Washington State Patrol; and WSLCB. 

By continuing to be a member of this multi-agency task force, we will be provided a wonderful 
opportunity to work with and form close ties with officers from other jurisdictions around Pierce 
County. 

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 
Interagency Agreement 



 

Page 1 of 1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

 

     CITY OF FIRCREST 
RESOLUTION NO. 1496 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN INTERAGENCY 
AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHINGTON TRAFFIC 
SAFETY COMMISSION ALLOWING THE FIRCREST 
POLICE DEPARTMENT TO ASSIST IN MULTI-
JURISDICTIONAL DUI, DISTRACTED DRIVING, AND SEAT 
BELT PATROLS.  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Fircrest is concerned about the safety of all its citizens and property; 
and 
  
WHEREAS, an entity known as the Washington Traffic Safety Commission has created 
the Tacoma/Pierce County DUI and Traffic Safety Task Force to assist in 
multijurisdictional high visibility emphasis patrols for the purpose of promoting the 
targeting, apprehending and successfully prosecuting as many DUI violators as possible 
and for participating in seat belt and distracted driving focused patrols as part of a statewide 
high-visibility enforcement campaign; and 
 

   WHEREAS, it is the desire of various law enforcement agencies within Pierce County to   
    participate in such a task force; and     

  
WHEREAS, multi-agency participation in such a task force is possible by virtue of the 
Washington Mutual Aid Peace Officer Powers Act set forth in Chapter 10.93 R.C.W. and 
the Interlocal Cooperation Act set forth in Chapter 39.34 R.C.W.; Now, Therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST: 
 

   Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute an Interagency 
Agreement with the Washington Traffic Safety Commission. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 24th day of October 2017. 

  
APPROVED: 

 
___________________________________ 

    Matthew Jolibois, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 
   Jessica Nappi, City Clerk 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

__________________________________ 
   Michael B. Smith, City Attorney   



































DISADVANTAGES:  None. Any one member of the Fircrest City Council may remove an item 
from the consent calendar for further discussion, inquiry, and/or subsequent vote. 

ALTERNATIVES:  Council could recommend not approving the revisions. 

ATTACHMENT: Resolution 



 

Page 1 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

CITY OF FIRCREST 
RESOLUTION NO. 1497 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE ORDER OF 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST CITY COUNCIL AS IT 

RELATES TO THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Fircrest adopted Resolution No. 441 on 
June 26, 1990, which constituted the City Council’s Rules of Procedures; and 
WHEREAS, the Fircrest City Council has made revisions to the City Council’s Rules 
of Procedures in years past (Resolution Nos. 528, 760, 1027, and 1076) in the public 
interest to provide a more effective means of conducting the business of the City; and 
WHEREAS, Rule 42 of the Fircrest City Council Rules of Procedures, dated February 
10, 2009, provides that the rules may be amended, or new rules adopted, by a majority 
vote of the Council; and 
WHEREAS, in an effort to employ a method to move through routine matters in an 
efficient manner by modifying the manner in which the Fircrest City Council conducts 
its meetings and be more efficient while still providing the public with the opportunity 
to participate meaningfully in the discussion of City business; and 
WHEREAS, the Fircrest City Council has been advised on the process of being able 
to approve certain routine matters, as identified below and as may be amended from 
time to time, efficiently and without discussion in the form of a consent; and  
WHEREAS, discussion and a more formal agenda process is not necessary for the 
adoption of these certain routine matters; and 
WHEREAS, any member of the Fircrest City Council may remove an item from the 
consent calendar for further discussion, inquiry, and/or subsequent vote; Now, 
Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FIRCREST:                                            
The following revisions shall be made to Rule 20 G. Consent Calendar: 

(1) The City Manager shall set the following items of business on the Consent 
Calendar. Consent calendar items shall consist of non-controversial routine 
matters, such as, but not limited to, the following: 

• Approval of vouchers/payroll warrants; 
• Approval of minutes; 
• Setting of public hearings; 
• Routine resolutions, including professional services contracts not in 

excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00); 
• Communications requiring no action (e.g. liquor license renewals); and 
• Treasurer’s report and financial reports. 

 
Items may be placed on the consent calendar at the discretion of the City Manager 
and may be removed from the consent calendar on the request of any one Council 
member. Items not removed shall be adopted by general consent without 



 

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

discussion. Removed items shall be placed later on the agenda.  Any document 
associated with the adopted consent calendar shall become part of the minutes. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FIRCREST, WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 24th day of October 
2017. 
 

                                                                         APPROVED: 
       
 

__________________________________                                                                                     
Matthew P. Jolibois, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________   
Jessica Nappi, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Michael B. Smith, City Attorney  





City of Fircrest, Washington | City Manager Employment Agreement | October 24, 2017 | 1 

CITY OF FIRCREST 
CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on October 24, 2017 by and between the City of Fircrest, 
Washington, a municipal organization, herein referred to as “City” and Scott Pingel, an individual, 
herein referred to as “City Manager”. The City and the City Manager are referred to collectively as 
“Parties”. 

WITNESSETH: 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenant and agreements contained and other valuable 
consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Employment: City hereby employs City Manager, and City Manager accepts such employment for 
an indefinite term commencing December 4, 2017 pursuant to the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement.

2. Exclusive Employment: During the terms of this Agreement, City Manager agrees to remain 
exclusively employed by the City and not become employed by any other employer, other than 
self-employment until the effective date of any termination or resignation hereunder.

3. Position Exclusions and Exemptions: City Manager acknowledges, understands, and agrees that 
the position he is accepting with the City is exempted from and not included under any civil 
service system of the Fair Labor Standards Act (F.L.S.A.).

4. Powers and Duties: Manager shall exercise the powers and perform the duties prescribed by the 
laws of the State of Washington, by City ordinance, and by the description of the City Manager 
position.  In addition to the above, City Manager understands that he may need to attend certain 
night time meetings, which may include, but are not limited to, City Council meetings, City 
Planning Commission meetings, Civil Service Commission meetings, and meetings of Committees 
and Boards.  Said meetings are an integral part of the duties of the position and are included in 
the consideration establishing the salary paid to the City Manager.  The Council acknowledges 
the principles and laws under a Council/Manager form of government.  The Council agrees to 
direct its concerns and requests for action to the City Manager, in accordance with RCW 
35A.13.120.

5. Salary: City shall pay to the City Manager an initial annual salary of one hundred and eight 
thousand dollars ($108,000.00) payable in bi-weekly installments subject to such deductions as 
are normally withheld from salaries of City’s employees, such as income tax withholding, FICA, 
Washington State Labor & Industry Medical Aid Insurance, and voluntary benefit or program 
deductions.  City Manager shall be entitled to the same COLA provided to other general 
employees. The Council Presiding Officer or designee will approve the City Manager’s Personnel 
Action forms.  City Manager’s salary shall be re-evaluated by the City Council on a yearly basis 
beginning December 4, 2018 to determine whether or not an increase in addition to COLA is 
appropriate, taking into account City Manager’s performance, the prevailing compensation for 
other City Managers with similar responsibilities in the Puget Sound region and such other 
factors as the City Council, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, then the adjustment shall be 
effective commencing January 1 of the next year. 



City of Fircrest, Washington | City Manager Employment Agreement | October 24, 2017 | 2 

6. Benefits: 
A. Vacation Leave: Effective upon City Manager’s first day of employment, City Manager shall be 

advanced eighty (80) hours of accrued vacation leave.  Vacation leave accrual shall be applied 
toward the eighty (80) hours of advanced leave.  Vacation hours shall be accrued thereafter at 
the vacation rate of 160 hours annually. 

B. Sick Leave: Effective upon City Manager’s first day of employment, City Manager shall be 
advanced forty (40) hours sick leave and shall accrue sick leave at the same rate as other 
regular employees during the course of his employment. Sick leave accrual shall be applied 
toward the forty (40) hours of advanced leave.   

C. Holidays: City Manager shall be entitled to take such paid holidays as are observed by the City. 
D. Insurance: City Manager shall participate in City’s Group Life, Medical, and Dental insurance 

plans and Employee Assistance Program (EAP) available to City Manager, provided City shall 
pay the expense thereof to the same extent City pays the expense of similar plans for other 
City employees. 

E. Vision and Hearing Care: City Manager shall be entitled to receive reimbursement or benefits 
for vision and hearing care as prescribed by the City Personnel System Ordinance. 

F. Retirement: City and City Manager may elect to participate in the Washington State Public 
Employees Retirement System or may invest in a comparable amount in the ICMA-RC deferred 
compensation plan. 

G. Automobile Allowance: The City shall provide a monthly stipend of two-hundred fifty dollars 
($250.00) per month ($3,000.00 per annum) for use of his personal vehicle for City business.  
The automobile allowance is in lieu of any reimbursement to City Manager for mileage for job-
related travel. City Manager shall agree he is responsible for all costs associated with the 
repair, maintenance, insurance, operation, and replacement of such automobile.  City Manager 
shall at all times maintain insurance for the automobile in an amount and with coverages 
acceptable to the City, name the City as an additional insured thereon, provide the City 
evidence of such insurance and shall inform his insurer that the automobile is used for 
personal and business purposes.  The automobile allowance shall appear on City Manager’s 
payroll stub as ordinary income.    The monthly automobile allowance shall be subject to 
review from time to time by the City Council and accordingly modified, if deemed necessary.  
Such allowance shall cease immediately upon termination or resignation of City Manager’s 
employment. 

H. Gym Allowance: As provided in the annual budget, the City may, in its discretion, compensate 
or reimburse, City Manager for all or part of the cost of an approved fitness program, club, or 
organization.  Such compensation shall be 50% for individual membership, not to exceed 
twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per month. 

I. Membership Dues: City shall pay membership dues for professional organizations and 
subscriptions to professional publications on behalf of City Manager as are specifically 
authorized by the City Council through the budget process; provided that City shall pay City 
Manager’s dues for membership in the International City Manager Association and the 
Washington City Management Association. 

J. Professional Education: City shall pay and/or reimburse City Manager for the cost of attending 
seminars and such other professional enhancement courses as are specifically authorized by 
the City Council through the budget process and pursuant to the existing policy of City for 
payment or reimbursement of employee expenses. City Manager shall be entitled to attend 
such meetings of the Association of Washington Cities, Labor Relations Institute (LGPI), 
International City Management Association (ICMA), and the Washington City County 



City of Fircrest, Washington | City Manager Employment Agreement | October 24, 2017 | 3 

Management Association as are specifically authorized by the City Council through the budget 
process.  The City Council encourages the City Manager to pursue the ICMA credentialing 
program and will provide $250.00 per year in support of that goal. 

K. Reimbursement for Expenses: City Manager shall be reimbursed for job-related expenses as 
prescribed by City Personnel Policies and City Ordinance and with approval of the City 
Council’s Presiding Officer or designee. 

L. Furlough Days: City Manager shall participate in furlough days the same as other non-union 
employees of the City. 

 
7. Relocation Expense Reimbursement:  City shall reimburse City Manager for reasonable 

relocation costs and moving expenses actually incurred, up to a maximum of five thousand 
dollars ($5,000.00). These expenses shall be limited to the costs of packaging, moving, the 
temporary storage of household goods and furnishings, and insurance charges.  City Manager 
shall submit a claim for reimbursement, along with copies of receipts and expenditures.  Payment 
shall be made upon receipt by the City of documentation that the expenses have been incurred 
and deemed reasonable and the City shall reimburse the City Manager for all such documented 
expenses within thirty (30) days of the City's receipt of such documented expenses. 
 

8. Performance Review: City Manager’s performance shall be reviewed at least annually with a 
written evaluation, and may be reviewed more frequently if requested by the City Council or City 
Manager.  City Manager and the City Council shall hold quarterly discussions to review City 
Manager’s performance. 
 

9. Termination: This is an Agreement for personal services, and City Manager acknowledges that he 
is appointed for an “indefinite term” and agrees that the City may terminate his employment at 
any time pursuant to RCW 35A.13.130 and RCW 35A.13.140. In the event of removal of the City 
Manager and termination of his services pursuant to RCW 35A.13.140, in addition to payment for 
accumulated vacation leave and other cash-out benefits provided under City policies, the City 
shall, as severance, pay City Manager a monthly cash payment equal to his then current monthly 
base salary for six (6) months, or until City Manager commences other full-time employment, 
whichever occurs sooner.  A monthly severance payment shall be prorated if full-time 
employment commences during such month.  Provided, however, in the event the reason for City 
Manager’s termination is the City Manager’s commission of a crime, City Manager shall not be 
entitled to severance pay.  All sums paid pursuant to this paragraph shall be subject to applicable 
payroll withholding taxes.  After termination, acceptance of other full-time employment is at City 
Manager’s sole discretion, and nothing in this paragraph requires City Manager to seek or accept 
other full-time employment during the monthly severance payment period. 
 
City Manager may terminate this Agreement by voluntary resignation, provided written notice 
thereof be given to City not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such 
resignation, in which even, City Manager shall not be entitled to severance pay. 
 

10. Indemnification and Bonding: City Manager shall be covered under the City’s liability insurance 
policies for covered acts or omissions occurring in the performance of City Manager’s duties as 
City Manager at no expense to City Manager.  City shall bear the full cost of public official bond 
required of the City Manager under a law or ordinance. 
 




	Agenda
	7A. Vouchers
	7B. 10.02.17 Minutes
	7B. 10.05.17 Minutes
	8A. Public Hearing
	8B. Public Hearing
	10B. Motion
	10C. Motion
	10D. Resolution 1496
	10E. Resolution 1497
	10F. Motion



